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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL ({f known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

SECOND PRESBYTERIAN GHURCH

In contrast to Richmond's penchant for building classical structures
Second Presbyterian Church was the first Gothic style church to be built in
the city. Completed in 1848, after a design by Minard Lafever, the church
was described in a local paper of the day as "a great ornament to the city"
and "the most perfect and beautiful specimen of Gothic architecture.”

The model for the church is believed to be Plate LXVI, the "new
National Scotch Church,'" from ILafever's Young Builder's General Instructor
of 1829. As originally built, the church was a long rectangular structure
with aisles and galleries on either side running the length of the church.
There were no transepts. To either side of the pulpit was a room, one a
library, the other, the pastor's study. At the opposite end of the church
was the entrance vestibule with curving staivs to the galleries.

In 1873, the church was enlarged by the addition of the one hundred
foot long north-south transept, thus making the shape of the church a "T".
The panel-fronted galleries, supported by clustered columns, were continued
around through the transepts. At the same time, the ceiling of the church
was remodelled, Except for a renovation in 1892, the installation of

electric light and heat in 1916, a renovation in 1945 for the church's cen-
tennial, and another renovation in 1970, the interior of Second Presbyterian
remains basically as it was in 1873.

The focal point of the interior is the raised pulpit (supported by
Gothic battlemented posts and reached by a pair of short, panelled stairways]
and the large screen behind it, The pulpit screen is divided into three
sections, carved in a simple Gothic design. Pinnacle-crowned and battle-
mented, it rises to a peak in the center, leading the eye up to the greoin
vaulted ceiling.

The exposed roof of dark-stained wood is divided into rectangular
compartments by the intersection of the timbers and supported by & hammer
beam truss. There are pendants at each end of the hammer brace, one of
plaster and the other of carved wood, and a quatrefoil decoration in wood
in the angle of the hammer brace and beam. Two panels in the ceiling have
been removed and replaced with skylights in order to illuminate the choir
area and organ in the gallery at the rear of the church. Based on English
models of the fourteenth century, the roof of Second Presbyterian is excep-
tionally fine and gives a great deal of elegance to the otherwise simple
interior of the church,

The walls of the church are plastered and painted in imitation of
ashlar. The nave and transepts are lighted by lancet windows composed of
two smaller,,diamond-paned lancets with an apical section of stained glass
between them. At the ends of the transepts, there are triangular Gothic
windows of stained-glass between. the large lancet units. The opaque white
panes of the lancets allow sufficient daylight into the church while the
stained glass windows add rich color, Over the lancet units and doors on
the interior of the church are plaster hood mouldings.

The exterior of Second Presbyterian presents very much its original
nineteenth century appearance. It is brick veneer with a brownstone belt-
course and trim around the doors and brownstone pinnacles on the tower and
corners of the church. The four-bayed sides of the nave and the two-bayed
transepts are buttressed between the lancet windows., The steep gable roof

slopes down to brownstone ‘crenelations which act as a cornice.,
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There is a square pinnacled tower with an arched entrance at the front of the
church. On the left hand side of the church, an arcade leads to the Parish
House, built in 1953,

The mid-nineteenth century, cast-iron fence which surrounds the
church is unique in Richmond, It has heavy posts capped with battlemented
rims which repeat those used in the pulpit on the interior of the church.
These support the gates to the fence while the intervening iron palings are
topped by & Gothic tracery pattern that resembles the tongue of flame motif.
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Second Presbyterian was known for many years as 'Dr. Hoge's Church
and properly so. The Rev, Mr. Hoge inspired his small congregation to
build "the most beautiful church in Virginia." It would not be "the finest
or the most costly," but the most tastefully done, ""the most symmetrical and

pleasing to an educated eye of any other."  Superlatives aside: the church

ing public buildings of Virginia's mid-nineteenth century.

Moses Drury Hoge, a graduate of Hampden-Sydney, came to Richmond,
serving briefly as assistant minister at First Presbyterian and then began
his long tenure as pastor of the daughter congregation. Hoge is remembered
as a minister and evangelist; as a spokesman for the South; as an editor--
Watchman of the South, The Central Presbyterian, Southern Eclectic -- as an
educator; and as one of "The South's most brilliant exemplars of the
preaching art." '

Hoge was one of the great public orators of the day. He spoke
for the community as it began new projects or honored dead heroes. When it
came time, thousands of Richmonders: white and black, rich and poor, men of
varied creeds and men of none, came forward to render first honor then
homage to him. In 1895, on the occasion of Hoge's fiftieth year as a
pastor, a great public reception was held. Four years later, the city
mourned his passing.

Richmond's Second Presbyterian Church has become, as its historian
has styled it, a "Downtown Church!’ Although founded to serve a specific
residential area of the city, its interests were cosmopolitan from the first
The imprint of its great pastor is everywhere evident. The theclogically
conservative minister and congregation served the spiritual and mundane
needs of people throughout the city.

Although Richmond has continued its westward growth, and the area
about Fifth and Main is no longer residential, Second Presbyterian remains
at the same locatiomn. The church continues, as it has done from the first,
to serve a large area of the city.

built according to plans supplied by Minard Lafever, is one of the outstand-
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